
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Wormwood Scrubs 
Charitable Trust Committee 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 19 June 2018 
7.00 pm 

Woodlane Community Centre, 78 White City Close, W12 7DZ 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Wesley Harcourt 
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson 
 

Councillor Belinda Donovan 
 

Co-optees 

To be appointed 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Amrita Gill 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. 
 

Date Issued: 08 June 2018 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 
Agenda 

 
19 June 2018 

 
Item  Pages 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR   

 The Committee is asked to appoint a Chair and a Vice-Chair for the 
2018-19 Municipal Year. 
 

 

2.   APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS  1 - 2 

 The Committee is asked to approve the appointment of two non-voting 
co-opted members.  
 

 

3.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING   

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2018. 
 

 

4.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it 
is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant interest which 
they consider should be declared in the public interest, they should declare the 
existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of 
Conduct, the nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in attendance and speak, 
any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest or other significant interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The 
Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, then the 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is under consideration. Councillors who have declared other 
significant interests should also withdraw from the meeting if they consider their 
continued participation in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and 
may give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation to that 
effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee. 
 

 

6.   ALTERNATIVE ECOLOGICAL MITIGATION PROCUREMENT  3 - 21 

 The report is seeking the Committee’s permission to approach the 
market and procure contracts for the design of Alternative Ecological 
Mitigation (AEM) and conservation management plan (CMP) proposals 
for Wormwood Scrubs Park.  
 

 

7.   MANAGERS REPORT  22 - 34 

 The Committee is asked to note all matters in this report.  



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST 

COMMITTEE 

 
19 June 2018 

 

 
 
 

APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTEES 
 

Report of the Monitoring Officer – Rhian Davies 
  

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Decision 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Director of Finance & Governance 

Report Author: 
Amrita Gill, Committee Coordinator 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2094 
E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1  This reports sets out the appointment of the Committee’s co-opted members. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Committee is asked to agree the appointments of the following non- voting 
co-opted members: 

 Sir Stephen Waley-Cohen – Friends of Wormwood Scrubs Representative 

 Miriam Shea – Friends of Wormwood Scrubs Representative 
 

3. INTRODUCTION 
 

3.1 Local authorities have a general power under the Local Government Act 1972 to 
co-opt persons from outside their membership to any committee appointed under 
the Act other than those established to regulate or control finance.   

 
3.2 The terms of reference of the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee, as 

approved by Annual Council on 23 May 2018, make provision for the co-option of 
two non-voting members to its committee. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

mailto:amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk


3.3 As an appreciation for their commitment to supporting the work of the trust it is 
proposed that the Committee re-appoints 2 non-voting co-opted members in the 
role of a representative from the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs. 

 
3.4  The Friends are an association of users of Wormwood Scrubs Park (“the 

Scrubs”), are recognised as a charity by HMRC and have over 3,000 supporters. 
The objectives of the Friends, according to their constitution, include the 
protection and conservation of the Scrubs for the exercise, recreation and 
enjoyment of the public in accordance with the Wormwood Scrubs Act 1879 and 
the resistance of encroachments and other inappropriate activity affecting the 
lawful use and enjoyment of the Scrubs by the public.   

 
3.5 Co-opted Members are entitled, should they elect to receive it, to an annual 

allowance of £504 plus travel expenses. 
 
 

4. TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

4.1 The non-voting co-opted role of the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs have been 
nominated by the Trust. The co-opted members’ period of office will expire at the 
end of the municipal year and the Committee will then decide whether these 
positions will be reappointed for a further year. 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  The legal implications for this report are contained in the body of the report.  
 

Implications completed by: Amrita Gill, Committee Coordinator - Tel: 020 8753 
2094 

 
 

6.   FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  The financial implications for this report are contained in the body of the report.  
 

Implications completed by: Amrita Gill, Committee Coordinator - Tel: 020 8753 
2094 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None. 

Page 2



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Wormwood Scrubs 
Charitable Trust 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Wednesday 14 March 2018 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Wesley Harcourt (Chair), Joe Carlebach and Elaine 
Chumnery 
 
Co-opted members: Stephen Waley-Cohen and Miriam Shea 
 
Officers: Mark Jones (Director of Finance and Resources), Steve Miley (Director of 
Children’s Services), Richard Gill (Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager), Ian Ross 
(Leisure Services Manager), and Amrita Gill (Governance). 
 

 
1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED: 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2017 were approved and signed 
by the Chair. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Joe Carlebach. 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4. MANAGERS REPORT  
 
MANAGERS REPORT 
 
HS2 Bill – Proposed Wetland Mitigation Legal Agreement 
The Committee welcomed Richard Gill who started in his role as the Wormwood 
Scrubs Development Manager on 15 January 2018. He provided an overview and 
noted that he had met with HS2 and projects had been agreed in principle as; 
removal of Japanese knotweed to create new habitat, woodland management, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

scrapes and wet woodland, hedge planting, heathland planting and grassland 
enriched with wildflowers. The next stage would be to appoint a consultant to 
design these works in more detail. This would include a conservation management 
plan, to understand the value and use of the Scrubs and a management and 
maintenance plan to maximise habitat improvement for wildlife. The proposals for 
the northern boundary were likely to be the most complex and would be influenced 
by the successes of knotweed removal. 
 
Councillor Elaine Chumnery asked for clarification around the timeline for the 
removal of Japanese knotweed. Richard Gill explained that the removal of all the 
knotweed would take at least 3 years and include the removal of some bramble.  
 
Councillor Elaine Chumnery suggested once timelines were confirmed to organise 
some community engagement work. The Chair welcomed this idea and was keen 
to get residents and schools on board to improve their understanding of the 
Scrubs. He also noted that this would be a great opportunity for pupils to gain 
valuable learning experience.  
 
 
HS2 Bill – Re-Routing Stamford Brook Sewer Legal Agreement 
Richard Gill provided an update and noted that HS2 were exploring the final route 
proposals for the sewer. Once confirmed, method statements to protect habitats 
during construction would be provided. He added that the Council had also 
requested an engagement strategy. Dates for ground investigation works would be 
fixed after the HS2 contractor had met with the Borough ecologist to confirm 
locations.  
 
OPDC Local Plan Consultation Responses 
The Chair noted that the old oak park royal development corporation was in the 
process of designating the local heritage listings. These comprise the local list and 
buildings of local heritage interest and were designated based on their heritage 
significance. Additionally, details of the local heritage listings were available online. 
The Council’s design and conservation officers had reviewed the documents and 
were satisfied with the direction of the document. The Council would issue its 
formal response to the OPDC by the close of the consultation which would be on 
22 March 2018. 
 
Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) 
Mark Jones provided an update and noted that the department for education (DfE) 
had contacted the Council to raise the possibility of KAA needing to remain at the 
Scrubs for a further year. This was not certain and depended on the state of 
readiness of their permanent site. Currently KAA only had planning permission for 
12 months occupation to July 2018. It currently had classrooms for 960 pupils but 
would need to expand to have enough space for 1150 pupils from September 
2018. This meant that the DfE needed to submit a planning application soon to 
cover these two matters. Steve Miley explained that he had met with RBKC and 
would feedback on their reasons for requesting an extension if required.  
 
Miriam Shea asked if there would be any changes to the rent charges. Mark Jones 
explained that this had not yet been discussed, however would update the 
Committee once this had been finalised with RBKC.  

Page 4



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
The Chair explained that two incidents had taken place one of which involved a 
young person getting stabbed and taken to hospital. He asked if these incidents 
took place at one school or involved pupils from the two different schools due to 
the close proximately of Ark Burlington Danes and KAA. 
 
Steve Miley explained that there was a general challenge around managing out of 
borough young people attending schools in the borough and this was one of the 
many risks that the Council needed to handle carefully. He noted that the incidents 
related solely to Ark Burlington Danes, based on the information currently 
available. Going forward this process would need to be closely reviewed, by 
identifying problematic areas in advance and ensuring that risks were managed 
effectively. Councillor Joe Carlebach suggested that it would prove effective and 
beneficial to invite ex-offenders to talk about knife crime and their experiences with 
young people at schools. 
 
The Committee agreed to delegate the power to approve any DfE contingency 
arrangements or proposals about the future of KAA on the Wormwood Scrubs site 
to the Chair of the Committee. 
 
Community Safety Update 
Mark Jones provided an overview and noted that between 1 October 2017 and the 
end of February 2018 parks police carried out patrols of Wormwood Scrubs and 
dealt with 28 incidents. The majority involved dogs and the use or misuse of the 
sports facilities. Offences reported to the police between October and December 
2017 included 3 offences involving violence and 1 robbery near the Linford Christie 
Stadium. A number of youths were subsequently arrested for robbery at that 
location. Furthermore, Councillor Elaine Chumnery asked for officers to also 
monitor any activities that took place at the scrubs which involved pupils from Ark 
Burlington Danes and KAA.  
 
 
Grounds Maintenance and Site Management Update 
Ian Ross noted that Richard Gill had spent his first 6 weeks in the post getting up 
to speed with the project and meeting HS2. Richard Gill was now starting to 
develop a series of project initiation documents that would form the basis of his 
work going forward.  
 
Officers had been working with colleagues in highways to facilitate the continuation 
of the cycle/quiet way through the site, which was funded by TFL. This would 
hopefully address some of the flooding issues on the footpath from the pony centre 
up to Linford Christie Stadium.  
 
Stephen Waley-Cohen asked how frequently was the cycle/quiet way used by the 
public. Ian Ross said that officers would monitor this and feedback to the 
Committee. The Chair said that it would be a good idea to organise an event in the 
Borough that encouraged residents to use their bicycles more often.  

Action: Ian Ross 
 

Litter continued to be a challenge. Officers would be reviewing the current 
schedules with ideverde management to see whether this could be dealt with 

Page 5



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

better. Furthermore, a letter had been sent to sports bookings on site, explaining in 
its message that those bookings were also responsible for the opposition’s 
conduct. Staff from the stadium and parks police would be monitoring the situation 
and that those caught offending would have their booking cancelled and would be 
charged for the clear up. Councillor Joe Carlebach suggested to add a levy on the 
booking fee if the present arrangements failed to succeed.  
 
Stephen Waley-Cohen asked how the money for the sports bookings was 
accounted for and how much this was in total. Ian Ross agreed to circulate an 
update outside of the meeting. 

Action: Ian Ross 
 

Events 
Mark Jones said that the Council was waiting for the cinema company to confirm 
whether they would like to use the Scrubs this summer. Additionally, the Council 
had been approached by an organisation that was interested in organising a music 
event on the Scrubs to raise funds for victims of the Grenfell fire. The aim of the 
event was to support the local community and showcase the community with local 
artists and performers along with high profile guest artists. All profits would go to 
Grenfell United. It was not anticipated that the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 
would make any money from the event, although costs would be covered.  
 
The Committee agreed and welcomed the opportunity and asked for the location 
details to be confirmed prior to the event taking place.  
 
 
Lease with UK Power Networks 
Mark Jones noted that the revised draft lease and a corrected lease site plan were 
sent to UKPN’s solicitors on 13 February. The Council anticipated that legal 
completion should occur before the end of March 2018. An update would be 
provided once this had been finalised.  
 
 
Financial Forecast 2017/18 
Mark Jones provided an overview and reported that the Trust’s opening cash 
balance for 2017/18 was £235,431. The latest forecast anticipated adding 
£259,892 to the current cash balance (110% of the current cash balance), which 
gave a cash balance of £495,249 to carry forward to 2018/19. This was £317,081 
better than assumed in the budget.  
 
Due to the temporary relocation of the KAA on the Scrubs the number of events 
that had been able to take place since July 2017 had been limited. The total 
income received this year was £67,595 with no further booking expected. 
However, the temporary relocation of the KAA on the Scrubs site had generated 
income of £177,909 for renting the site and £12,481 for the temporary building 
compound.  
 
If the agreement with UKPN was not signed by the end of March then instead the 
Council would account for the £169,400 backdated in the next financial year 
2018/19. The forecast for income from filming and events, KAA and UKPN was 
£429,195 which was £339,083 better than budget for activities for generating 

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

funds. The Council would likely see some costs and potentially a boost in income 
following the introduction of cashless parking, but we do not know how much this 
would be. 
 
Financial Budget 2018/19 
Mark Jones summarised the proposed budget for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable 
Trust along with details of movements and assumptions. The budget included 
£93,333 income for rent payable by KAA for the period April to July 2018. If the 
school stayed for an extra year then the budget for 18/19 would improve by 
£186,000 as a result of additional rent.  
 
The budget included rental income payable by UKPN for occupation of the land 
which had been agreed for the next 7 years. It also included rental income payable 
for the new electrical vehicle charging points on the Scrubs. The Council had made 
quite cautious assumptions about the likely income from events in 2018/19. 
Securing a large event was not assumed, but Council officers were working on 
possibilities.  
 
Overall cash reserves were expected to be significantly increased by the end of 
2017/18 and the budget anticipated a modest net income of £19,353 in 2018/19. 
 
Legal Comments 
There were no legal implications to be noted. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee approved the budget for 2018/19, and delegated to the Chair 
of the Committee, in consultation with Committee members, the power to approve 
any DfE contingency arrangements or proposals about the future of KAA on 
Wormwood Scrubs site.  
 

 
Meeting started: 7:00pm 
Meeting ended: 8:30pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Amrita Gill 
Assistant Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 0208 753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 7



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee  

19 June 2018 
 

 

ALTERNATIVE ECOLOGICAL MITIGATION CONSULTANTS PROCUREMENT 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for the Environment – Councillor Wesley 
Harcourt 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For decision 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation: 
Representatives of the Legal, Financial, Procurement, and Leisure Service teams 
have been consulted throughout this exercise and will continue to part of the project 
team managing this procurement until the contract is awarded.       
 

Wards Affected:  
All  
 

Accountable Director: Mahmood Siddiqi – Director of Transport, Highways, Parks 
& Leisure 
 

Report Author: 
Richard Gill – Wormwood Scrubs 
Development Manager (Leisure 
Services) 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 07833482119 
E-mail: Richard.Gill@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report is seeking Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 

permission to approach the market and procure contracts for the design of 
Alternative Ecological Mitigation (AEM) and conservation management plan 
(CMP) proposals for Wormwood Scrubs Park. (the Scrubs)  

 
1.2. The requirement for the Council to produce a design for the AEM is set out in 

the agreement dated 20th October 2016 (Agreement) between The Sec. of 
state for Transport (the Promotor) and the Mayor and Burgess of the London 
Borough Hammersmith and Fulham (the Council) relating to ‘High Speed Rail, 
London West Midland, Bill and ecological mitigation for wormwood scrubs’.  
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Richard.Gill@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 

1.3. A Design Timetable within the Agreement sets out the plan to commission 
consultants to develop a conservation management plan (CMP), detailed draft 
proposals and Specification for the AEM works 
 

1.4. The Detailed Draft Proposal and Specification for the CMP and AEM works 
will be approved by the Promotor, or nominated undertaker (HS2), and will 
then be used to procure a works contractor to implement the AEM proposals 
and subsequently a grounds maintenance contractor to maintain the CMP and 
AEM works.  The appointed consultant will also prepare a 10 year 
management plan for the works and update this throughout the 10 year period 
at intervals to be agreed. 
 

1.5. HS2 will reimburse the Council for the costs to design, implement and 
maintain the AEM proposals and management plans together with any 
reasonable costs properly incurred by the Council. 
 

1.6. The outputs from the AEM will include a management plan which will closely 
align with a hierarchy of plans including; the London Plan, the Old Oak and 
Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC) Local Plan and the Councils 
Open Spaces Strategy. These plans will positively and directly contribute to 
improving the quality of life of all our residents. 
 

1.7. The appendices to this report provide additional information and implications 
in connection with the main report.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. To approve the Business Case & Procurement Strategy for the  

2.1.1. appointment of a consultant to develop: 
2.1.1.1. a conservation management plan; and  
2.1.1.2. detailed draft proposal and specification for the 

Alternative Ecological Mitigation works; and 
2.1.1.3. a 10 year management plan with updates throughout 

the 10 year period; and 
2.1.2. the appointment of related cost consultants to overview the 

process. 
as set out in Appendix 1, attached to the report 

 
2.2. That delegated authority be granted to the Director of Transport, Highways 

Parks & Leisure, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for the 
Environment, , to award the contract for the conservation management plan 
and development and design of the AEM proposals and specification to the 
successful tenderer and the appointment of the cost consultant to oversee the 
process.     
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

3.1. To comply with the requirements contained in Contract Standing Orders which 
requires approval before a regulated procurement exercise is commenced 
and to comply with the Promotors requirement to achieve value for money 

Page 9



 
 

 
4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

 
4.1. Wormwood Scrubs Park, known locally as ‘the Scrubs’ is the largest open 

space in the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham (the borough) and 
has been public open space since the Wormwood Scrubs Act of 1879. Its 
history shows it has been both protected from development and subject to a 
wide range of uses leaving a unique multi-faceted estate that is at once both 
underused and under pressure. 

 
4.2. The eastern side of the scrubs is predominantly mown grass laid out mainly 

as football pitches which together with the adjacent Linford Christie stadium 
and Pony Centre provide significant recreational opportunities. The western 
side of the scrubs is unmown grassland and scrubland with significant, 
developing biodiversity opportunities. 
 

4.3. Many residents and visitors take the opportunity to walk or jog on the Scrubs 
appreciating access to both wildlife and recreational opportunities. The 
potential for increased use from residents and users of the OPDC 
developments means there will be an increased pressure particularly on 
sensitive wildlife habitats. 
 

4.4. Proposal. We are proposing to go out to tender for a lead consultant to:  

 Develop a conservation management plan (CMP) which confirms the 
main issues and risks and puts forward a vision and objectives to 
consult and work with stakeholders to address them. 

 Design the AEM works to reflect the CMP principles and the 
Agreement as a Detailed Draft Proposal.  

 Develop proposals into a specification for tendering the works. 

 Produce 10-year management plans for the AEM works which include 
biodiversity surveys to measure improved wildlife opportunities 

 Manage any subconsultants required within the design team 
 

4.5. It is proposed cost consultants are a separate appointment to maintain a 
robust independent view. 
 

4.6. Issues.  Wormwood scrubs has a wide range of stakeholders with sometimes 
conflicting interests. The AEM funding cannot be used to improve facilities 
that do not improve biodiversity opportunity. The aspirations of some 
stakeholders will have to be addressed through other funding mechanisms 
which will be identified as risks in the CMP 
 

5. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  
 

5.1. A Service Review Team (SRT) has undertaken a service review in 
accordance with Contracts Standing Orders and prepared the procurement 
strategy and the business case.  Appendix 1 sets out the commercial and 
procurement options, together with an analysis of these options. 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

 
6. CONSULTATION 

 
6.1. Details of consultation undertaken by the SRT are given in Appendix 1 

(Section 8). 
 

7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1. The Council has given due regard to its duties under Section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 and it is not anticipated that there will be any negative 
impacts on any groups with protected characteristics from the approval of the 
Business Case and Procurement Strategy for the design of the alternative 
ecological mitigation proposals for Wormwood Scrubs. 

 
7.2. Implications verified and completed by: Peter Smith, Head of Policy and 

Strategy, tel. 020 8753 2206. 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
The appointment of the AEM consultant: 

8.1. The value of the AEM consultant is above the service threshold specified in 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (as amended) (currently £181,302).  
As specified at appendix 1 the Council will publish a Contract Notice in the 
Official Journal of the European Union stating the process it will follow for the 
tender.  The proposed procurement process is the Restricted process and 
shall be conducted in compliance with the Regulations.  The Restricted 
process is a two-stage process whereby the Council runs a selection process 
to reduce the number of tenderers who are invited to tender.  The shortlisted 
tenderers are then invited to submit tenders by a set deadline.  All received 
tenders will be evaluated in accordance with the proposed evaluation criteria 
as set out in Appendix 1 below.  The restricted procedure is considered 
appropriate for this procurement in order to reduce the bid pool at the first 
stage of the process.. 

 
Appointment of the cost consultant 

8.2. The value of the cost consultant appoint is below the service threshold 
specified in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (as amended).  The value 
is below £100,000 and in accordance with the Council’s Contracts Standing 
Orders quotes will be sought using a suitable framework.  The officers have 
identified the Crown Commercial Services Framework RM 3741 for Project 
Management and Full Design Team Services as an appropriate framework for 
these services.  A mini competition will be run in accordance with the 
procedures set out in the Framework Agreement and all Framework 
Contractors in the relevant lot will be invited to tender. 
 

8.3. For both procurements a standard consultancy form of agreement can be 
used.  This should be adapted to fit the Council’s own requirements and to 
cover the 10 year period during which the consultant will prepare 
management plan updates.  A standard form can be used as the tenderers 
will be familiar with the terms. 

Page 11



 
 

 
 
8.4. The proposals of this appointment meet the statutory requirements contained 

in the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 in that the service, by its 
nature, as an alternative ecological mitigation assessment, will benefit the 
local community with the improvement of the environmental habitat of the 
Scrubs and increase in biodiversity opportunity.  The consultants will be 
required to seek input from local groups and stakeholders. Thereby the 
consultancy work and ultimately the works which flow from it are aimed at 
improving the social and environmental well-being of the area. 

 
8.5. Implications verified/completed by: Sally Stock, Partner, Sharpe Pritchard 

LLP, tel. 020 74064500. 
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1. This report seeks approval of the approach and process to appoint 

development constants and related cost consultants associated with the 
implementation of Alternative Ecological Migration (AEM) works at Wormwood 
Scrubs.   
 

9.2. The overall consultants budget (design, management, and implementation) is 
£782,000 over the 10-year projected lifetime as set out in Appendix 1 (section 
2 “Financial Implications”). £344,000 is the pre-tender estimate for the 
development consultant (£266,000) and cost consultant (£78,000). 
 

9.3. Approval of this proposal should have no financial impact of The Wormwood 
Scrubs Charitable Trust. This is because the costs to design, implement and 
maintain the AEM proposals and management plans, together with any 
reasonable costs properly incurred by the Council, will be reimbursed by High 
Speed Two Limited Ltd (HS2).  The Council is required to ensure that all costs 
are reasonable and property incurred.  
 

9.4. HS2 funding includes maintenance of the new works for up to ten years. 
Additional funding would be required to progress any activities beyond the 
AEM works. There is an overall project aspiration to identify additional 
investment through CiL, S106 or other funding and explore how income could 
be increased through events, licences, and other activities. 
 

9.5. Implications verified/completed by: Carmen Lomotey, Principal Accountant, 
Environmental Services Finance, tel. 020 8753 2721. 

 
10. HR IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1  HR have been consulted around HR/Recruitment implications. 
 
10.2 Implications verified/completed by: Lesley Bell, HR Practice Manager,, tel. 

07917 722 424  
 
 

Page 12



 
 

 
 

11. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 

11.1. This proposal could potentially create supply opportunities for local 
businesses and skills/employment opportunities for local residents.  Most of 
these are likely to be identified with the procurement of the contractor and the 
consultants’ brief will be to develop and encourage this.  
 

11.2. Community engagement will form part of the evaluation criteria and it is 
expected that the masterplan will include an activities plan, encouraging 
volunteering and a range of community engagement events.  
 

11.3. Procurement will follow the usual Council procurement processes via Capital 
E-Sourcing and suitable local consultancies will be identified and actively 
encouraged to apply. 
 

11.4. Implications verified/completed by: Albena Karameros, Economic 
Development Team, tel. 020 7938 8583. 

 
12. COMMERCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
12.1. The Commercial & Procurement Division has worked with the SRT in 

preparing and agreeing the Business Case & Procurement Strategy as set out 
in Appendix 1. 

 
Commercial implications 

 
12.2. Details of the commercial implications identified by the SRT are given in 

Appendix 1 (Section 4).   
 

Procurement implications 
 
12.3. Details of the procurement implications identified by the SRT are given in 

Appendix 1 (Section 5).   
 

12.4. Implications verified/completed by: Andra Ulianov Procurement Consultant, 
tel. 0208 753 2284. 
 
 

13. IT IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. There are no IT implications contained within this proposal. 

 
13.2. The contents of the proposal do not refer to any personal data being held 

therefore there are no implications under the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act 2018 (GDPR).   
 

Page 13



 
 

13.3. Implications verified by Veronica Barella, Chief Information Officer, tel 020 
8753 2927. 
 
 
 

 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
14.1 The main risks are that the Council does not; attain Best Value from the 

tendering exercise (mitigated by the business case and procurement 
strategy), and meeting the community needs and expectations for those areas 
included in the Park referenced in section 1.6 (mitigated by the report 
proposals), and the risks to the local environment (mitigated through the 
proposed conservation plan). In addressing these they contribute positively to 
the control of the following risks on the Council’s Corporate Risk Register; 
Risk 3 Commercial Contract Management and Procurement, Risk 11 Decision 
making and maintaining reputation and service standards, Risk 9 Partnerships 
and major contracts. The report proposals also contribute to the following 
Council Priorities; Being ruthlessly financially efficient through procurement, 
Doing things with, not to residents, through Stakeholder Consultation and 
Taking pride in Hammersmith & Fulham through being the most 
environmentally positive borough in London because the health and wellbeing 
of our people is so important. 
 

14.2 Implications verified by: Michael Sloniowski Risk Manager tel. 020 8753 2587. 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Business Case & Procurement Strategy  

Page 14



 
 

APPENDIX 1:   

REPORT RELATING TO 
BUSINESS CASE; 
PROCUREMENT STRATEGY; and 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE 
FOR AEM PROPOSALS DESIGN PROCUREMENT 
 
BUSINESS CASE 
 

1. BUSINESS CASE – WHY THE PROCUREMENT IS NEEDED 
 
The Requirement.  To approach the market to procure contracts for an established 
lead consultant and cost consultant to produce a CMP and design the AEM 
proposals for the Scrubs. These proposals are required to obtain the approval of 
HS2 as set out in the Agreement dated 20th October 2016. 
 
The Scrubs is the largest open space in the borough well used by local residents for 
sport and recreation it also supports excellent breeding habitats for a range of 
species giving people access to biodiversity and natural habitat. The AEM proposals 
funded by HS2 will increase biodiversity opportunity. The adjacent Old Oak and Park 
Royal Regeneration area will significantly increase the local population increasing 
demand for use of public open space and pressurising the natural habitats and 
biodiversity. It is essential that the scrubs has an appropriate CMP and landscape 
infrastructure design in place to cope with this increased demand  
 
Without a robust design and CMP, developed by listening to the community, to 
protect and enhance the value of the scrubs natural heritage we risk: 

 Habitat fragmentation caused by increased traffic from adjacent developments 

 Loss of habitat and decline in value of those that remain 

 Misunderstanding of the value and sensitivity of habitats and continued; 
inappropriate use, overuse and anti-social behaviour 

 A decline in the quality of open space through inappropriate use and 
behaviour 

 Reduced impetus to invest and care for the scrubs 

 Reduced value added to adjacent developments 
 
The London Plan, the Local Plan and our Parks Strategy all support access to 
recreation and wildlife as key aims for Health and Wellbeing. The development of the 
AEM proposals within a robust CMP will protect the values of this important open 
space for future generations. 
 
Rationale for contracting out the service.   
The landscape and ecological consultancy market is well established and very 
specialised.  The Council does not currently retain the management expertise 
required to design the AEM within the timescales required or to a level of detail to 
consult with the community, stakeholders and the planning authority. 
 
Current contract performance.   

Page 15



 
 

The current grounds maintenance (GM) contract is part of a borough wide service 
but a management plan written in 2003 was not adopted and there is no clear vision 
to protect and enhance biodiversity. Ecological enhancements implemented over the 
years have been managed by small scale, targeted volunteer works, standard GM 
procedures or left to develop through natural succession.  
 
The implementation of the AEM proposals must have a long-term management plan 
in place to maximise biodiversity opportunities. The Current GM contract does not 
have the scope to implement a landscape/ecological improvement project of this 
scale or the biodiversity management techniques within it to sustain the 
improvements. A specification will be developed by the consultant which can be 
used to procure a suitable landscape contractor. The market for this type of 
landscape implementation and management is mature and well tested 
 

2. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The overall budget within the agreement for the design and implementation of the 
AEM proposals is £3,885,657. Working budgets for the design/management and 
implementation of the AEM Proposals during the ten-year plan have been agreed 
with HS2 as follows: 

 Project Management (LBHF staff costs)  £   781,129 

 Project Management (Consultants)  £   782,000 

 Biodiversity Surveys    £   233,244 

 AEM works (including maintenance)  £1,559,727 
 
The HS2 funding is additional to the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust budget. The 
Proposed Annual Budget for 2018/19 is £770,325. The major budget expenditure is 
grounds maintenance including Linford Christie Stadium. The major regular income 
is from the car parks. A net Resource of £19,354 is budgeted for 2018/2019 which 
will be added to unrestricted funds. Unrestricted funds can be used for non- routine 
maintenance or capital improvements to the Scrubs. Current unrestricted funds 
(2017/18 year-end) total £515,243. 
 
The HS2 funding includes maintenance of the new works for up to ten years after 
which the AEM management plan will ensure the scrubs increased biodiversity 
opportunity will be managed within available resources. There is an overall project 
aspiration to identify additional investment through CiL, S106 or other funding and 
explore how income could be increased through events, licences and other activities. 
This additional funding would be required to progress any activities beyond the AEM 
works. 
 
Pre-Tender estimate 
The pretender estimate for the consultancy advice including the 10 year 
management planning is based on the Landscape Institutes Fee guidance and some 
market research. 

 Initial Consultation and CMP                        £   20,000 

 Basic AEM Design service stage 2-6                       £136,000 

 Ongoing 10-year management plan updates and surveys      £  70,000 

 Clerk of works role                                    £  40,000 

 Total                                     £266,000 
 

Page 16



 
 

The pretender estimate for cost consultancy of £78,000 is based on some market 
research 

Page 17



 
 

3. OPTIONS APPRAISAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

Table A – Options Appraisal 

Options Title Description  Benefits Drawbacks Recommended 

Option 1 Do nothing  The council could in theory 
take issue with the 
Agreement and choose not 
to design and implement 
the AEM proposals. The 
agreement would then be 
subject to dispute 
resolution. 

No benefit since all reasonable 
costs are included within the 
agreement 

There would be a loss of a significant opportunity to 
improve biodiversity at Wormwood scrubs. 
HS2 could use powers of compulsory acquisition and 
implement the works themselves potentially resulting in 
less community involvement and long term 
management benefits and unknown political, 
community and legal backlash 

 

 

Option 2 Manage the 
process in-
house. 

The council could opt to 
bring the management of 
the design process in-
house  

 

Full internal control of the 
service operations.   

The council does not currently retain the management 
expertise required so new staff would need to be 
employed with increased lead in time to advertise and 
employ staff on short term contracts or long term cost to 
council. The budget set aside for consultants would 
have to be reallocated to LBHF staff by agreement with 
HS2. A new in-house team with no track record would 
be seen as less expert by the community, stakeholders 
and the planning authority. 

 

 

Option 3 Manage the 
process through 
GM operations 

 

The council could explore 
the management of the 
design process through the 
existing GM Contract. 

 

Potential saving in tendering 
time if design and 
implementation with same 
contractor. 

 

With the exception of tree management the GM 
contract does not retain the management expertise 
required see all drawbacks above Option 2 
Plus amendments to the contract would need to be 
negotiated. 
Best value as required by the agreement would have to 
be shown if not demonstrated by tendering 

 

 

Option 4 Procure a 
contract for 
design services  

 

Approach the market to 
tender for a contract for 
design services of lead 
consultant with option of 
using existing tree 
management services and 
separate cost consultant. 

   

Necessary expertise available 
No need to recruit additional 
staff. 
Experience of project delivery 
and access to this knowledge. 
Reduce risk of delay by 
separating the project focus 
and the distraction of day to 
day management 

Community disengagement if consultant does not use 
genuine consultation techniques. 

 

 
 

P
age 18



 
 

4. THE MARKET 
 
The market for landscape consultancy is mature and well tested through council 
procurement. The London market is particularly well developed with the greatest 
concentration of practitioners in the country. Many landscape consultancy’s also 
offer Ecological advice. Ecological consultancies are fewer and some offer 
landscape advice. There would also be practitioners in either discipline who could 
engage subconsultants to fulfil the requirements of the contract. 
 
During April 2018 officers undertook a limited soft market testing exercise. Initial 
research identified several established consultants in the London area who offered 
ecological advice and had completed similar projects. Telephone enquiries with four 
consultants showed great interest in the possibility of tendering for the work and 
helped produce the pre- tender estimate. 
 
Some of the key findings from the market testing exercise are as follows:    
 
Contract Length –traditional contracts are based on work stages (RIBA stages 1-6 or 
LI stage A-L) Usually the defects liability period for landscape works would be 1-3 
years post completion. The AEM proposals require a 10-year management plan with 
biodiversity surveys. A break clause should be explored in case the management of 
this phase could be through separate contracts managed in house. 
   
Packaging – The general view was that a single contract with a lead consultant 
would be simpler and more efficient to manage although there would be a premium 
to add to the basic service price. If additional services such as engineering were 
required these could be as a subconsultant to the lead consultant. Generally the plan 
to have the same consultant producing the vision design and management plan was 
met with enthusiasm as this would produce a consistency of approach. 
 
Pricing – The overall total price for the contract will be broken down into prices for 
each stage of work RIBA stages 1-6 or LI stage A-L.     
 

   

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
 

5. CONTRACT PACKAGE, LENGTH AND SPECIFICATION  
 
Contract Package.  The intention is to procure a lead consultant to commence in 
September 2018 
 
The landscape/Ecological consultancy falls into a number of elements which could 
be covered by a suitable consultancy to the following RIBA work stages: 

 Production of a CMP and initial Consultation (Stage 1) 

 Stage 2 Review and develop design (Detailed Draft Proposal) 

 Stage 3 Developed design (Inc. Panning application if required) 

 Stage 4 Technical Design (Specification) 

 Stage 5 Construction (Work on site Inc. Clerk of works role) 

 Stage 6 Completion and hand over (Inc. 10-year management plan and 
surveys) 

Page 19



 
 

 
The standard memorandum of agreement of the Landscape Institute is the usual 
form of appointment of landscape architects. Cost consultants have similar 
agreements through their professional institutes 
 
 
Contract length and Potential for subdividing contract into Lots. The length of 
appointment should be until completion of the 10-year management plan. There 
should be break clauses in the contract: 

 after completion of RIBA stage 3 (planning approval) in case the works are 
not approved by HS2 or the planning authority. 

 After end of defects liability period to allow more flexibility in how the on-going 
ecological surveys and updates to the 10-year management plan could be 
managed and priced. 

 
The main elements of the consultancy service should not be divided to receive a 
more consistent design approach. 
 

 The production of a CMP could be separated and provided by a consultant 
who specialises in this type of document. However, there would be 
advantages in terms of consistency and communication for it to be the same 
consultant and for there to be a close working relationship between the 
production of this document and the design stage. Its recommended this is 
not a separate lot. 

 

 Ongoing ecological surveys could be provided by a specialist consultant 
particularly as this service will be ongoing for up to ten years after the design 
work is completed. However, it would be used to feed back into an ongoing 
management plan so an understanding and close working relationship 
between the survey information and the plan is required. Its recommended 
this could be priced separately as options of working within lead consultants 
team up to practical completion and providing a separate service after 
practical completion 
 

 In house staff do not have the capacity to design and manage the 
Arboricultural works. Also, there are distinct advantages in a close working 
relationship between arboriculturalist and the lead consultant. Its 
recommended  this is not a separate lot. 
 

 Cost estimating is offered by some consultancy’s but the advantage of 
keeping this as a separate lot would be that it offers a more independent view 
and challenge to designers. This would be a separate appointment but is not 
estimated to be in excess of £100,000 

 
Specification.   
For consultancy services the appointment will be required to work to: 

 The appropriate code of conduct for their professional and the conditions of 
engagement 

 carry out works in accordance with the RIBA work stages or equivalent 
 

Page 20



 
 

 
 

6. SOCIAL VALUE, LOCAL ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS 
 
Community benefits would be realised through a genuine consultation and 
engagement strategy. This would be appraised through the consultants approach to 
developing the CMP and the identification of using volunteer groups for e.g. in 
community action projects. A social value of 5% has been allocated to the evaluation 
criteria of the procurement process. 
 
Throughout the life of the contract officers will continue to work on how best the local 
economic and community benefits can be achieved from the design of the service.   

 
 

7. OTHER STRATEGIC POLICY OBJECTIVES 
 
The new LBHF Health and Wellbeing Strategy has key aims to support good mental 
health for all, support children and families to be healthier, and reversing the rising 
numbers of acquired long term health conditions. Access to good and varied leisure 
activities is proven to support each of these aims, and access to nature will play a 
part in this. 
 
Other important documents form a hierarchy within which the Wormwood Scrubs 
management plan will sit including: 

 Biodiversity Commission report 

 London Plan Access to nature 

 LBHF backing campaign to make London a ‘National Park City’ 

 Local plan objectives (LPA is Old Oak and Park Royal Development 
Corporation (OPDC) 

 LBHF Park Strategy 
 
The management plan will also inform adjacent redevelopment including: 

 Old Oak and Park Royal Development 

 Development of Linford Christie stadium 

 Development of Wormwood scrubs prison 
 
 

8. STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION 
 
Key stakeholders are The Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust, The Council and 
HS2.  These key stakeholders will be consulted on this strategy. 
 
Regular meetings will have been held with The OPDC the Friends of Wormwood 
Scrubs and this will continue through the design process. 
 
The role of the consultant will include the identification of tenants, users and non- 
users whose views will all be solicited for inclusion in the CMP. This CMP document 
will be influential in the development of the designs and management for the Scrubs. 
 

Page 21



 
 

Internal Stakeholder engagement throughout the procurement process will continue 
with the procurement, legal, and finance departments represented on the project 
board.   

9. PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE 
 
AEM CONSULTANT 
The procurement procedure for the AEM Consultant is proposed as a restricted 
procedure (two staged procedure) conducted via the Council’s e-tendering system, 
capitalEsourcing. 
 
During the first stage of the process, tenderers will submit their responses to the 
standard selection questionnaire (SSQ). Part 3 of this questionnaire will request 
details of up to three contracts that are relevant to our requirement. 
Stage 2 will consist of  inviting a minimum of five candidates who have met the 
selection criteria of Stage 1 (provided sufficient candidates express interest). These 
tenders will be evaluated according to the contract award criteria in section 10.1 of 
the Appendix. 
 
COST CONSULTANT 
 A call off from the Crown Commercial Services Framework No RM 3741 is proposed 
for the procurement of a cost consultant. Candidates will be invited to tender from 
the appropriate Lot of Framework No RM3741   The Council will run a mini-
competition amongst the framework contractors inviting all framework contractors to 
tender.  The Council will evaluate the tender returns in line with the framework tender 
weightings and enter into a call off contact with the selected Framework Contractor. 
The contract award criteria is set out at section 10.2 of the Appendix 
 

10. CONTRACT AWARD CRITERIA 
 

10.1 Contract Award Criteria for AEM Consultant 
 
Quality/Price ratio recommended 
The Quality/Price ratio for the consultant appointment will be 60/40. The market is 
well established and prices are likely to be competitive. It is essential that a 
consultant of the appropriate quality and experience is appointed. 
 
Level 1 Criteria 

 Weighting (%) 

Technical (Quality) 60% 

Commercial (Price) 40% 

Total 100% 
 

Breakdown of Evaluation Criteria and Weightings 

In relation to Commercial, the weightings will be allocated as follows with the 
Bidder’s price evaluated in relation to the lowest priced submission.  

Commercial Weighting 

Total Price  40% 

Page 22



 
 

Total 40% 

 
 

In relation to Technical the weightings will be assessed through a series of relevant 

method statements as set out in draft below.   

Technical 
 

Question Weighting 

1 
 

please outline your methodology for undertaking the production 
of the Conservation Management Plan in particular highlighting 
any challenges that you feel have to be overcome and how you 
have achieved using three previous projects as examples. 
. 

15% 

2 please outline your methodology for undertaking the production 
of a concept masterplan and consultation in particular 
highlighting any community engagement tools you using three 
previous projects as examples. 
. 

10% 

3 Please outline how you would consider social value aspirations in 
particular highlighting any community engagement tools you 
feel should be employed within the initial consultation and built 
into the longer term project management  
 

5% 

4 please outline your methodology for undertaking the detail 
design of this project  
This should include an indicative project timetable for 
CMP,Masterplan, detail design and management plans. 

 

10% 

5 please outline your methodology for undertaking the 10-year 
management plan for this site including your recommendations 
for biodiversity surveys and method of measurement for habitat 
value. using three previous projects as examples. 
This should include an indicative project timetable 
 

10% 

6 Explain how your team will be structured if you are successful, 
and what each individual’s role will be. Please confirm what 
consultancy expertise for landscape architecture, ecology, 
arboriculture etc will be within your company structure and 
which will be subconsultants and who will actually be leading the 
project throughout.     
Please supply CV’s of your intended team highlighting their roles.   

10% 

   

 Total 60% 

 
  

Page 23



 
 

 
10.2 Contract Award Criteria For Cost Consultant in line with the published 
criteria for the CCS Framework RM 3741 Lot [  ] 
 
Quality/Price ratio recommended 
The Quality/Price ratio for the consultant appointment will be 50/50 in line with the 
CCS Framework RM 3741.  
 
Level 1 Criteria 

 Weighting (%) 

Technical (Quality) 50% 

Commercial (Price) 50% 

Total 100% 
 

In relation to Commercial, the tenders will be evaluated at tier 1 level.  
 
In relation to Technical the weightings will be assessed through a series of relevant 

method statements as set out in draft below.   

Technical 
 

Question Weighting 

   

1 please outline your methodology for cost management of the 
detail design of this project Including an estimation of man hours 
for each stage 
This should include an indicative project timetable. 

20% 

   

2 Explain how your team will be structured if you are successful, 
and what each individual’s role will be. Please also indicate who 
will actually be leading the project throughout.     
Please supply CV’s of your intended team highlighting their roles.   

15% 

3 This is a sensitive site. Please provide examples of a minimum of 
3 previous projects where you have worked on a similar project  
which you feel demonstrate your suitability for this project.  For 
each example provided please also clearly indicate the specific 
capacity in which you were involved  

15% 

 Total 50% 

 
 
 
Where errors in the computation of a tender are found, the Bidder will be given 
details of such errors and afforded an opportunity of confirming or withdrawing its 
offer. If confirmed an endorsement will be added to the relevant schedule indicating 
that all rates or prices inserted therein by the tenderer are to be considered as 
reduced or increased in the same proportion as the corrected total of priced items 
exceeds or falls short of such items. This endorsement will then be required to be 
signed by both parties to the Contract. 

Page 24



 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE 
 

11. PROJECT MANAGEMENT    
 
The project team and SRT is comprised of the following officers: 
 

Name Role 

Ian Ross Parks Manager  

Andra Ulianov LBHF Procurement Lead  

Carmen Lomotey Finance Lead  

TBA Legal Lead  

Jeremy Plester Special Projects Advisor 

Richard Gill Project Manager 

 

Procurement risks will be identified, and tracked by the project team and escalated 
via the lead officers and SRO accordingly.  Mitigation activities will be applied as 
directed.   
 
Leisure Services will be undertaking evaluation of the returned tenders as advised by 
the borough’s legal and procurement leads.   
 

The cabinet member for the Environment will receive regular updates from the 
service through policy board meetings. The Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 
Board meets quarterly and will receive a project update    
  

Page 25



 
 

 
12. INDICATIVE TIMETABLE 

  

Date Action Progress 

May 2018 HS2 to approve consultants brief In progress 

June 2018 Submit Report to Wormwood Scrubs Charitable 
Trust Board 

 

July 2018 OJEU advertisement issued to commence the 
procurement process and Standard Selection 
Questionnaire issued 

 

August 2018 Deadline for submission of expressions of interest in 
line with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 

 

August 2018 Selection of qualified candidates to invite to tender  

Sept 2018 Deadline for submission of Tenders. Evaluation of 
Tenderers received 

 

Sept 2018 Cabinet Member approval of Consultant  

Oct 2018 Standstill period (10 clear days before award)  

October 2018 Award Contract and commence services  

October 2018 Commence procurement for Cost Consultant – issue 
through framework 

 

November 
2018 

Deadline for submission of tenders  

 Evaluation of the tenders for the Cost consultant and 
award of call off 

 

October to 
April 2019 

Prepare the detailed draft proposals for approval by 
the [Council] 

 

April 2019 HS2 to agree Detailed Draft Proposal  
 

 
 

13. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 

 

Monitoring and Reporting 
The appointed consultant shall monitor and report on its performance in the delivery 
of the services in accordance with brief. 
In addition, the Council shall undertake its own performance monitoring of the 
Services The consultant will use its reasonable endeavours to assist the Council in 
such an exercise and shall have due regard to the Council’s comments in relation to 
the future provision of the services. 
 
A monthly report will be produced by the consultant for the SRT and a quarterly 
report for the Project Board by the project manager. 
 
 

Page 26



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST 

COMMITTEE 

 
19 June 2018 

 

 

 

MANAGERS REPORT 
 

Report of the Director for Transport and Highways and the Director for Finance 
and Resources, Environmental Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For review and comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: College Park and Old Oak 
 

Accountable Director: Mahmood Siddiqi, Director for Transport and Highways  
 

Report Author:  
Mark Jones, Director for Finance and Resources 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 6700 
E-mail: 
mark.jones@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
1. Executive Summary and Decisions Sought 

 
1.1 The Committee is asked to note all matters in this report. 
 
2.  HS2 Bill - Proposed Wetland Mitigation Legal Agreement  

 
2.1 Additional surveys to support the information gained in the surveys by the 

London Wildlife Trust in 2016 and 2017 are underway. This includes surveys 
for birds, invertebrates, hedgehogs and vegetation. Surveys will be completed 
by late summer. 

 
2.2 Works to control knotweed have commenced.  
 

 Paths have been cut in bramble to allow access to the knotweed stands. 
These works were carried out in late March. This is early in the bird 
nesting season so great care was taken to explore the bramble and 
ensure there were no nests in the vicinity. 
 

 Signs have been posted to explain what these works are and why it is 
important. No contact has been made by members of the public through 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



the e-mail address provided but the Friends of the scrubs requested a 
meeting to discuss the project. 

 

 The next task will be to treat the knotweed once it has grown to a suitable 
height and weather conditions are favourable. This treatment is most 
effective when carried out in two applications, early and late summer. This 
means we must carry out treatment while birds may still be nesting. 

 

 Arrangements have been made to meet with the London Wildlife Trust 
who are acting as our ecologists and the knotweed contractor to agree a 
suitable methodology of carrying out works during this period. 

 
2.3 A meeting with the Friends of the Scrubs took place on 22nd May with a 

general project update. The Friends were particularly interested in: 
 

 How the Knotweed works would be progressed an update as above was 
provided. 
 

 How the project would use external consultants. The Friends were 
concerned that the project spent as much resource as possible on actual 
works rather than consultancy. This is addressed in the Report requesting 
authorisation to appoint consultants 

 
2.4 A Project Initiation Document (PID) has been developed to outline the why, 

what, who how much and when of the project. This document identifies the 
need to appoint consultants to design the AEM works. 

 

 The PID has been discussed with HS2 with the main outcome that the 
project aims relating to the AEM works must be clearly separated from 
other long-term project aims relating to sport and recreation. 
 

 A Consultants brief has been developed which outlines the scope of their 
works. 

 

 A report and business plan which outlines the need to appoint consultants 
is a separate item on the agenda for this meeting. 

 
 Committee to Note 
 
 
3.      HS2 Bill Re-Routing Stamford Brook Sewer Legal Agreement 

 
3.1.1 The HS2 contractor has been granted access to carry out Ground 

Investigation (GI) Works. The access point is from Braybrook Street and the 
works entail several boreholes along the Northern boundary of the scrubs.  

 The position of the boreholes has been discussed on site and will be well 
away from the embankment or any vegetation. HS2 will ensure an 
ecologist has a watching brief during the works in case nesting birds or 
other fauna required works to be adapted. 
 

Page 28



 The access point will be secured to prevent any unauthorised access. 
Details of gate and vehicular movements during the works will be provided 
by HS2 contractors 

 

 Works are planned to start on Thursday 7th June with some enabling 
works for the access point commencing on Monday 4th June 

 

 Details of site notices to explain these works to the public will be 
provided. 

Committee to Note 
  
 
4. OPDC Draft Local Plan: Further Consultation on changes – 14 June to 31 

July 
 

4.1  Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC) are amending 
their draft Local Plan to reflect the masterplan work their consultants AECOM 
have been developing since they were appointed in January. The consultation 
will be on the proposed changes only - and not on the whole document. The 
draft Local Plan will be tracked to show the changes that the OPDC are 
consulting on. The consultation will begin on 14 June and run for a 6-week 
period until 31 July. OPDC will consult WSCT as part of the process. 

 
Committee to Note 
 
  

5. Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) – Mark Jones 
 

5.1. The Department for Education has provided an update. 

5.2. The planning application to allow the school to remain on the site for a further 
year is progressing well and due to be considered at the 11 July committee. 

5.3. The Department remains undecided currently about whether the school returns 
to their original site. Factors around the noise and dust of the (likely) tower 
deconstruction are still being explored.  The school is aiming for a decision by 
3 July; which will be just two weeks from the end of term. 

5.4. There are a number of reinstatement items which the Department see as 
sensible to address now such as replanting trees and hedges and making good 
damaged grass.  Other matters rely heavily on what happens next on the site, 
which remains unclear.  

5.5. The Department proposes meeting with Council officers  meet in July to 
discuss the larger scale infrastructure matters.  The intentions of KAA should 
be clearer by then. 

Committee to note 

 

Page 29



6. Community Safety Update – Mike Rumble 
 

6.1 Between 01/03/18 and 01/06/18 Parks Police dealt with 22 Incidents on WWS 
and carried out 64 high visibility patrols.  Incidents included the abandonment 
of horses on two separate occasions.  Both horses were in a neglected and 
emaciated condition and having been taken to secure locations, are now 
doing well and will hopefully have a brighter retirement.  

 
6.2 Officers also attended Linford Christie Stadium to deal with a male who was 

suspected of stealing items from the changing rooms.  Although no offences 
were detected he was identified and removed from the area.   

 
6.3 A grey Lurcher dog being walked was attacked by a Staffie sustaining 

moderate injuries.  A description of the offending dog and its owner was 
circulated and enquiries are continuing to identify both.   

 
6.4 Pressure is being kept up in respect of ‘professional’ dog walkers and a Fixed 

Penalty Notice was issued to one walker who was in possession of five dogs. 
 
6.5 No crimes were reported to the MPS in March and three crimes were reported 

in April (Theft/Drugs/Vehicle).   
 

Committee to Note 
 
 
7. Grounds Maintenance and site management update – Ian Ross 

7.1. Invasive species – further areas of Japanese Knotweed have been found in the 
Pony Centre. Idverde have been asked to treat this when the weather 
conditions are conducive. 

Of more concern is the discovery of Giant Hogweed on the site. To date 5 
plants have been discovered. Idverde are arranging to spray these as a matter 
of urgency to try and eradicate the issue however this is an extremely invasive 
plant, so more plants may materialise. Officers and Idverde staff will monitor 
the area, where if more are to materialise they are likely to do so and treatment 
will be carried out as quickly as possible. 

On a positive note, no evidence of Oak Processionary Moth has been found to 
date this year. 

7.2. Sports bookings – at the last meeting officers were asked to provide the sports 
income figures for Linford Christie Stadium. Below are the requested figures, 
please note these also include sports income for Wormwood Scrubs: 

Page 30



 

7.3. Litter continues to be a major issue; the staff are working hard to keep up.  

7.4. We have had further notification of litter being left on site after the bank holiday 
weekend. After searching the sports booking records, it turned out on the day 
the litter had been left no bookings had been made so this must have been an 
unauthorised game. Officers and Idverde are following up with Parks Police. 

7.5. Pony Centre – over the Easter bank holiday the Pony Centre suffered flooding. 
Officers are working with the centre to look at short and long-term flood 
alleviation solutions. It may be that the HS2 Ecological Mitigation project can 
deliver a solution that will enhance the scrubs ecologically as well. 

Committee to Note 
 
 

8. Events 

8.1. It appears the cinema company will not be using the Scrubs this summer.  
Negotiations revealed they were prepared to offer in kind benefits (e.g. work 
experience) but even our offer of a reduced fee per head was not attractive.  
Council officers will talk to the company again about 2019. 
 

8.2. The Cancer Research Pretty Muddy event takes place on 23rd June 2018 with 
preparations taking place on the 22nd June. The organisers have met with 
council officers and have been made aware of the biodiversity and 
conservation issues. This event has taken place on Wormwood Scrubs for the 
last 5 years. Access to the event is from the Old Oak Common side of the 
Scrubs. 

 
Committee to Note 

 

Facility / Activity 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018

£ £ £

11AWP 27,289.95 43,888.11 25,194.58

5AWP 72,637.18 66,338.82 82,332.74

5AWP (11) 747.50 993.92 651.04

Athletics 7,381.27 9,089.50 23,570.47

Basketball -                          -                          205.00

Comm Rm 5,584.83 1,773.67 1,841.88

Football 11AS 5,215.83 7,577.88 26,917.12

Hockey 4,752.67 9,735.60 583.50

Lacrosse 72.50 -                          -                          

Netball 66.67 187.50 -                          

Rugby 300.00 1,533.33 3,966.67

Sports Day 10,098.55 3,897.41 12,371.17

Tennis 118.33 -                          6.67

Training -                          389.17 -                          

Total income (excluding VAT) 134,265.29 145,404.90 177,640.83

Page 31



 
9. Lease with UK Power Networks – Mark Jones 

9.1. There has been further correspondence with UKPN’s agents and lawyers.  
Concluding the lease has gone on much longer than anyone anticipated.  
However the recent correspondence has narrowed down the remaining issues.  
Council property officers consider that progress is being made and that none 
of the issues being debated are significant.  We await the reaction of UKPN’s 
agents to the Council’s most recent response. 

 
Committee to Note 
 
 
 

10. Financial Outturn 2017/18 

10.1. The financial outturn for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) for 
2017/18 is summarised below and is detailed in Annexe A. Financial 
transactions for the financial year to date are set out in Annexe B. 

 

 
 

10.2. The budget for 2017/18 was set with an anticipated £57,189 deficit to be 
drawn down from the Trust’s reserves. The outturn for 2017/18 is a surplus of 
£297,964 which is £355,153 better than budget. 

 
10.3. The Trust’s opening unrestricted funds balance for 2017/18 was £217,279 (i.e. 

£235,356 opening Cash in Bank minus £18,078 opening creditors). The 
outturn figure will be added to this, giving a closing unrestricted funds balance 
of £515,243 (i.e. £251,781 Cash in Bank plus £273,391 Debtors minus £9,900 
audit fees).  

Activity
Outturn 

2015/16

Outturn 

2016/17

Budget 

2017/18

Outturn 

2017/18
Variance

Movement 

Between 

Years

Comments
Last 

Reported
Movement

Pay and Display Parking Meters (303,538) (287,012) (287,225) (259,674) 27,551 -10%

Parking income is  £27k (10%)  lower than the 2016/17 outturn. This 

is largely due to changeover from cash to telephone payments in 

Autumn 2017.

(254,282) (5,392)

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (294,070) (316,505) (322,896) (324,619) (1,723) 2.6%

Quarterly contracted lease payments increased by 4% in Q4 (from  

£80,324.49 to £83,642.58); £8k (2.6%) higher than the 2016/17 

outturn. 

(324,619) (0)

Other income from activities for generating 

funds
(80,964) (95,873) (90,112) (488,002) (397,890) 409%

Although Filming/Events income for 2017/18 showed strong growth in 

the first two quarters compared with 2016/17, the temporary 

relocation of the Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) to the Scrubs 

has meant greatly reduced Filming/Events income (£66k). However 

this loss is far exceeded by additional income: £217K from KAA 

(Temporary compound, lease payments and parking permits) and 

£173k from UKPN (Lump sum and backdated rental). £3k Income 

from Investments and £30k recharges to HS2 (offsetting expenditure) 

are also included in income generating activities.

(429,195) (58,807)

Total Income and endowments (678,572) (699,390) (700,234) (1,072,295) (372,062) 53.3% (1,008,096) (64,199)

Grounds Maintenance 684,032 686,568 699,473 706,909 7,435 3% Inflation for 2017/18 is 3.007%. Costs include £18k Governance costs 708,176 (1,267)

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 32,405 32,344 32,312 32,330 18 0%
Includes £0.83k of governance costs for 2017/18, not credited to 

Linford Christie Stadium accounts.
32,287 43

Other Expenditure 21,335 19,694 25,637 35,093 9,456 78%
Costs include £30k recharges to HS2 and £5k (non routine 

maintenance and car park wall repairs)
7,741 27,352

Total Expenditure 737,772 738,606 757,423 774,332 16,909 5% 748,204 26,128

Net (income)/expenditure 59,199 40,139 57,189 (297,964) (355,153) -842% (259,892) (38,072)

Previously Reported

Page 32



 
10.4. As previously reported the transfer to a new cash collection service for parking 

income did not go as smoothly as anticipated (e.g. the old machines were not 
emptied leading to the machines being so overfull that they could not accept 
payment, and breaking down on occasion). This resulted in lower than 
expected income in September and October of approximately £25,000. The 
new cashless service is now operating correctly. This helped income levels 
between November 2017 and March 2018 to exceed predicted levels (2016/17 
equivalent) by £12,516. The final outturn for Pay & Display and Parking meters 
was £259,674, which is £27,551 worse than budget, but £5,392 better than 
last reported. 

 
Other Income from activities generating funds:  
 

10.5. Filming and events income, £65,897, has been affected (£24,215 worse than 
budget), by the reducing numbers of events since July 2017 due to the 
temporary relocation of the Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) to the 
Scrubs. However, this temporary relocation of KAA has generated income of 
£216,930 (£201,242 for rental of the site; £12,480 for the temporary building 
compound and £3,208 for 8 staff parking permits by KAA for the rest of the 
academic year). 
 

10.6. We have accounted for an additional £172,579 of income from the expected 
agreement with UKPN.  Income in 2017/18 comprised a £100,000 settlement 
for historic use of the land (capped at six years’ prior use by statutory 
limitation); an agreed figure of £69,420 for the twenty-four-month period up to 
May 2017 and £3,159 rental for the period May 2017 to 31st March 2018. 
 

10.7. Income from investments includes: a peppercorn rent of £1,092 per annum for 
the tied accommodation property, Park Lodge, situated on the Scrubs, and 
£1,534.27 interest on Trustee account funds. 
 

10.8. Total income from activities generating funds at £488,002 is £397,890 better 
than budget. This income also includes £29,970 to cover expenditure incurred 
on behalf of High Speed Two (HS2). Figures are included for accounting 
purposes only as all costs are reported on the expenditure side and will be 
fully reimbursed by HS2. 

 
Expenditure  
 

10.9. The price indices used to calculate the contractual uplift on the grounds 
maintenance contract were forecast to be 1.98% during budget setting. 
However higher rates of inflation drove the actual uplift up to 3.007% for 
2017/18. This increased the contract cost by £20,645. The apportionment of 
£18,148 governance costs, alongside the uplift has meant that the outturn is 
£7,435 overspent, as the budget for this expenditure is held on the ’other 
expenditure’ line.  
 

10.10. The contribution to Linford Christie Stadium has again been capped by the 
council and therefore the small variance is due to the  reallocation of 

Page 33



governance costs. Other expenditure includes £29,970 costs to be reimbursed 
by HS2 and £5,123 non-routine maintenance and car park wall repairs. 

 
Committee to Note 

 
11. Financial Forecast 2018/19 

11.1. The 2018/19 budget for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) was 
set with an anticipated surplus of £19,354 to be added to the Trust’s reserves. 
The latest forecast for 2018/2019 is a reduced surplus of £4,319, which is 
£15,035 worse than budget mainly due to reduced projections for filming and 
events income (£7808) and under budgeted grounds maintenance (£7,254). 

11.2.  The financial forecast for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) for 
20/8/19 is summarised in the table below.  

 

 

11.3. Income from pay and display and cashless parking is expected to exceed the 
2017/18 outturn and return to 2016/17 levels as new systems have been fully 
implemented and fluctuations seen in 2017/18 are not expected to reoccur. 

11.4. Hammersmith Hospital car park income has been estimated at £366,109; 
inflated by 1.84%.  

Other income from activities for generating income: 

11.5. KAA rental income of £93,333 covers the period April to July 2018 only. It is 
possible that the school may wish to remain on the site for a further year until 
July 2019 but this will not be factored into the forecast until certain.  If the 
school does stay for an extra year then the forecast for 2018/19 would improve 
by some £186,666 because of additional rent. 

11.6. Annual rental from UKPN for occupation is £3,446 and from electrical vehicle 
charging points is £9,000. Profit sharing, although contractual, has not been 
included due to uncertainty.  

Activity
Outturn 

2016/17

Outturn 

2017/18

Budget 

2018/19

Forecast  

2018/19
Variance

Movement 

Between 

Years

Comments

Pay and Display Parking Meters (287,012) (259,674) (281,611) (281,611) 0 8%

The budget was based on the average income over the last 3 years. Income 

is expected to be higher than 2017/18 due to the introduction of cashless 

parking.

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (316,505) (324,619) (336,109) (336,109) 0 4%
Current forecast: Quarterly contracted lease payments to increase 1.84% in 

Q4 (from  £83,3642.58 to £85,181.60)

Other income from activities for generating 

funds
(95,873) (488,002) (171,958) (164,150) 7,808 -66%

Current forecast assumptions: £93k KAA income (April - July 2018; £3.4k 

and £9k from UKPN, respectively for rental and EV charging points; £31.2k 

from Filming (6 months equivalent); £15.5k for events (including Winter 

Wonderland); £9k from the met Police for carnival parking; and £3k 

investment income. 

Total Income and endowments (699,390) (1,072,295) (789,678) (781,870) 7,809 -27.1%

Grounds Maintenance 686,568 706,909 712,344 719,598 7,254 2%
Budgeted inflation for 2018/19 is 1.84%. The contract price is budgeted at 

£701,434; £18,164 governance costs have been added to this.

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 32,344 32,330 32,344 32,316 (28) 0%
Includes £0.83k of governance costs, not credited to Linford Christie Stadium 

accounts.

Other Expenditure 0 35,093 25,637 25,637 (0) -27%
Forecast kept at 2017/18 outturn. Actual costs will depend on WSCT 

income and cost of work commissioned by Council officers.

Total Expenditure 718,912 774,332 770,325 777,551 7,226 0%

Net (income)/expenditure 40,139 (297,964) (19,354) (4,319) 15,035 -99%

Page 34



11.7. Income from filming and events has been cautiously forecast at £55,778 
(including events foregone in 2017/18 due to KAA occupation: Winter 
Wonderland and Metropolitan Police carnival parking). Income is assumed only 
after KAA’s occupation end; 6 months only (2months for vacation and site 
clearance). That will all change if KAA decide to stay on at the Scrubs for 
another year. This reduced forecast creates an under recovery of £7,808. 

11.8. Price indices (Derv Fuel, Plant & Road Vehicles, and GLPC pay scales) were 
used to calculate a 1.84% contractual uplift on the grounds maintenance 
contract. Although this has increased the contract price by £12,673 (from 
£688,671 to £701,434), the budget has not been exceeded. The budget of 
£712,344 is overspent once governance costs of £18,164 are added.  We will 
move the budget for governance costs from the ‘other expenditure’ line into the 
grounds maintenance line in the next report.  

Unrestricted Income Funds 

11.9. The Trust’s opening unrestricted funds balance for 2018/19 is £515,243 (i.e. 
£251,781 Cash in Bank plus £273,391 Debtors minus £9,900 audit fees). As 
the latest forecast anticipates a surplus of £4,319, the Trust would have a 
closing unrestricted funds balance of £519,562 to carry forward to 2019/20. 
This Forecast is £15,035 worse than budgeted.  

Committee to Note 

 
12.  Legal Comments 

12.1. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

12.2. Comments provided by Dermot Rayner, Deputy Team Leader, Legal Services, 
dermot.rayner@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 

Annexe A 
 

2017/18 Financial Outturn Position 

 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for Year ended 31 March 2018

Income and Expenditure 2017/18 2016/17

£ £

Income and endowments from:

Income from Charitable activities:

     Pay and Display Parking Meters (259,674) (287,012) Pay and Display Parking Meters

     Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (324,619) (316,505) Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence

Other trading activities (485,376) (94,509) Other trading activities

Income from Investments (2,626) (719) Income from Investments

Total Income and endowments (1,072,295) (698,745)

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

     Costs of generating Parking Income -                         -                         Costs of generating Parking Income

     Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 32,330 32,230 Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium

     Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 3,267 19,363 Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs

     Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 706,909 684,160 Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs

-                         

Other expenditure 31,826 331 Other expenditure

Total Expenditure 774,331 736,084

Net gains/(losses) on investments

Net (income)/expenditure (297,964) 37,339

Reconciliation of Funds

Total funds brought forward (5,217,280) (5,254,619) Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward (5,515,244) (5,217,280)

All income was unrestricted.

WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18

Page 36



 
 

ANNEXE B 
 

2017/2018 Full Year Transactions 
 

Activity Comments Amount 
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood 
Scrubs Tree works 150.00  
Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood 
Scrubs Fencing 3,033.00  

Other trading activities Historic balance correction -645.00  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income April 2017 -17.80  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income April 2017 -23,669.25  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income May 2017 -28,023.25  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income June 2017 -26,999.20  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income July 2017 -25,519.55  

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2017/18 Q1 Hospital Car Park Rental -80,325.49  

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2017/18 Q2 Hospital Car Park Rental -80,325.49  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income August 2017 -21,999.38  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income April 2017 23,669.25  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income May 2017 28,023.25  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income June 2017 26,999.20  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income July 2017 25,519.55  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income April 2017 -18,935.40  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income May 2017 -22,418.60  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income June 2017 -21,599.36  
Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income July 2017 -20,415.64  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income April 2017 18,935.40  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income May 2017 22,418.60  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income June 2017 21,599.36  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income July 2017 20,415.64  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income April 2017 -19,724.38  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income May 2017 -23,352.95  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income June 2017 -22,499.33  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income July 2017 -21,266.29  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 273.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -273.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -273.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Page 37



Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Activity Comments Amount 

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2017/18 Q3 Hospital Car Park Rental -80,325.49  

Pay and Display Parking Meters KAA Parking Permits -3,208.00  
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood 
Scrubs WSCT - Fixed Ground Maintenance 2017/18 668,625.00  
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood 
Scrubs WSCT - Fixed Ground Maintenance 2017/18 2,064.36  

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium WSCT Contributions to LCS 31,500.00  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income September 2017 -10,803.75  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income October 2017 -7,111.63  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income November 2017 -23,392.13  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -17,759.42  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -5,336.30  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -4,796.00  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -4,301.04  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -4,301.04  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -2,230.52  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -2,230.52  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,195.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -3,642.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,195.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,195.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,115.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,195.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,195.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -1,115.26  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -996.05  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -884.20  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income December 2017 -15,975.21  

Pay and Display Parking Meters Wormwood Scrubs Income January 2018 -32,716.67  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -273.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income -273.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 273.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Income from Investments  Park Lodge Rental Income 91.00  

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2017/18 Q4 Hospital Car Park Rental -83,642.58  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -736.83  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -3,138.15  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -2,721.48  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -252.50  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -733.33  

Page 38



   

Activity Comments Amount 

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -530.50  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -505.00  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -3,105.78  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -400.00  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -160.00  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -758.00  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 -2,321.80  

Other trading activities WWS Filming Income 2017.18 4,796.00  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39


	Agenda
	2 Appointment of Co-opted members
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Alternative Ecological Mitigation Procurement
	7 Managers Report

